
 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.   

 
 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian, Council 

Member Arizmendi, Council Member Capoccia, and 

Council Member Goss 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 
 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  Approval of City Council minutes from the regular 

meeting on July 10, 2018 and Special Joint Session with 

the Library Board of Trustees on July 10, 2018. 

 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Council Member activities relating to City business. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  Regarding items not on the Agenda. 
 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, July 24, 2018  

 

6:30 pm  

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

  
 

 Denise Delmar, Mayor  

John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

John Capoccia, Council Member 

Gene Goss, Council Member 

 

Sue Spears, City Clerk  

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 



ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

 a) NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FY 2017/2018 STREET 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council accept the 

completed work for the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Street 

Improvement Project and direct staff to file a Notice of 

Completion with the Los Angeles County 

Clerk/Recorder. 

 

 b) FY 2018-2019 BLANKET PURCHASE 

ORDERS FOR VENDORS IN 

EXCESS OF $45,000 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve the 

issuance of blanket purchase orders for vendors in 

excess of $45,000 for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 

 

 c) GRANULAR ACTIVATED CARBON 

REPLACEMENT 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council award a contract 

in the amount of $122,000 to Carbon Activated 

Corporation for the replacement of virgin carbon in the 

City’s granulated treatment vessels. 

 

 d) RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE 

PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

WATER MAIN REPLACEMENTS AT 

VARIOUS CITY LOCATIONS AND 

DIRECTION TO CITY STAFF TO 

SEEK CONSTRUCTION BIDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve plans 

and specifications for the replacement of water 

mains at various City locations, and direct staff to 

advertise the project for bids; recommendation that 

the City Council approve a change in the order 

authorizing OnWard Engineers to design an 

alternate bid schedule and specifications for the 

installation of C-900 PVC pipe in the amount not to 

exceed $6,480.00 
   

 e) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 18-39 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 18-39 for approval of payment of City 

warrants in aggregate amount of $598,594.82; Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $3,429.43, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $317,014.75  

for fiscal years ending June 2018 and June 2019. 

 

 DISCUSSION 

 

  

2. DOWNTOWN PEDESTRIAN SAFETY 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council authorize the 

installation of flashing crosswalk signs at four  

pedestrian crosswalks in the Downtown District.   

 

3. DISCUSSION REGARDING TITLE 17, 

ZONING, CHAPTER 17.22.130 – 

RECORDATION REQUIRMENT FOR 

SECOND UNIT PERMIT 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council provide staff 

with direction. 

4. PENSION RATE STABILIZATION PLAN  Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 18-40, a Resolution approving a fund 

balance policy for the General Fund; authorize the lump 

sum pre-payment to CalPERS for PERS Unfunded 

Accrued Liability and the budget amendments 

necessary to fund the payment; and authorize the 

establishment of a Pension Rate Stabilization (115) 

Trust Fund. 
 

 



 
ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Public Hearing at this same place on Tuesday, July 31, 2018. 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


Page 1 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

Tuesday, July 10, 2018 – 7:00 pm 
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 

  

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

Mayor Denise Delmar called the meeting to order at 7:20 p.m.  City Clerk Sue Spears called the roll. 

 

Present: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

  

Absent: None  

 

Also Present: Gabe Engeland, City Manager 

Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 

Marcie Medina, Assistant City Manager 

Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk 

James Carlson, Management Analyst 

Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works  

Joe Ortiz, Police Chief 

Jill Schofield, Acting Library Services Manager 

Christine Smart, Associate Librarian 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

 

INTRODUCTION OF THE LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 

Library Board of Trustees in attendance were Chair Patricia Hall, Vice Chair Shannon King, Trustees 

Rich Procter, Rod Spears, and Barry Ziff 

  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS PRESENTED: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian moved to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Council Member Goss seconded the motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss  

Noes:      None 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

AND LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES  
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL,  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 



Page 2 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

Absent: None 

Abstain: None 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was passed unanimously. 

 
AGENDA ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
 

1. Recap of Library Survey Results  
 

City Manager Engeland reported on the Library Survey that included a PowerPoint presentation.  

The summary of the survey is as follows: 

 

 A majority of residents support (a) services that include an up-to-date collection of 

materials, (b) moving select programs from the Library to other locations in the City, and (c) 

selling the back lot to pay for facility repairs. 

 

 A majority of residents do not support (a) moving the Library to a new location, (b) a 

significant reduction in services, and (c) a parcel tax to pay for a new Library or enhanced 

services. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.  Council members 

did not ask any questions. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item.  Seeing no one come forward, 

Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and moved the agenda to Item #2 – Discussion of the Vision 

of the Library Board. 

  

2. Discussion of the Vision of the Library Board  
 

Library Board of Trustee Chair Hall thanked the City Council for having this joint meeting and 
reported that there was consensus among the Library Board of Trustees regarding the four 
available options and introduced Trustee Procter to address their findings. 
 
Trustee Procter read a Library Vision Statement as a description of the Sierra Madre Library 10 
years from now, a summary of which follows: 
 

 The Library is the pride of the City and a living symbol of the commitment of Sierra Madre 
residents to create an engaged, thriving community.  It serves the community in so many 
ways, it is hard to believe that it was once controversial.  

 

 Book lovers can find what they want in a modern, well-lit, comfortable environment that 
invites them to browse, to sit and read, and meet friends. 

 

 Parents find a cheerful, inviting Children’s Room, with overstuffed chairs designed for a 
parent and child to sit together and read. The room is designed for events where children 
can bond with parents as they learn to love reading and narrative storytelling.  

 

 Patrons looking for other media – movies, music, books on disc, digital books, etc. – can 
find what they are looking for, thanks to intuitive way-finding, easy access, and the 
friendliest, most helpful staff anywhere.  

 



Page 3 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

 Community groups can now meet in comfortable and friendly dedicated spaces that are 
used just about every night.  Book lovers can read in peace and quiet, children and parents 
can share a hands-on learning event involving Lego bricks and robotic hardware, and the 
Civic Club can meet to plan their next Summer concert in the park – that is over 100 people 
enjoying the Library at the same time without disturbing one another.   

 

 This new Library is flexible and agile. Spaces are designed to transform as community 
needs change and technologies evolve. Patrons know that this Library will be a community 
asset long into the future because it is always changing and always addressing community 
needs. 

 
Trustee Procter then outlined the Trustees’ preference Library Plan.  He said that the options that 
the Trustees considered were (a) fix the existing Library, which would cause a loss of 22% in the 
collection, (b) fix the existing Library and add meeting rooms (Modest Library Rebuild – would meet 
the Vision Statement within current staffing), and (c) the ambitious new Library (Fully Outfitted New 
Building).  Trustee Procter reported that the Trustees’ preference is Option b – the Modest Library 
Rebuild because it has all the virtues of the current Library with none of the problems, i.e. ADA 
safe, earthquake compliant, comfortable, well lit, and friendly.  He said that this Library can serve 
Sierra Madre for 60 years and will delight all groups that it serves today in dedicated spaces such 
that there are no conflicts in space usage at the same time.  Trustee Procter stated that such a 
Library will show the world that Sierra Madre walks the walk, every Sierra Madre resident can say 
that they helped build the Library, we did this together, and this is why I love Sierra Madre.  
 
Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.  

  

Council Member Capoccia commented that the issue of the Library has been discussed since the 

1970s, asked what is different now, why is this the right time to do this as opposed to the past, and 

why is the Board of Trustees providing a vision of why residents should pay a tax. 

 

Trustee Chair Hall said that 10 years ago there were multiple public forms making a case as to why 

we needed a new Library, and, at that time, people were willing to pay a parcel tax. She said that 

community education is critical to letting people know what they will be given/what they will realize 

from this kind of investment in their community.  Trustee Chair Hall also stated that there needs to 

be an emotional component to this, the Library is not just a building (people do not give to bricks 

and mortar) and people give to needs.  She also stressed the necessity of letting people know how 

it benefits the community, how it benefits children, how this enhances programs, and that is what 

people give to. Trustee Chair Hall stated that approach to raising money is the same regardless of 

the issue, gets people to feel emotionally involved, and the money comes because people want to 

see this wonderful project.  In addition, she said that we can overcome what the survey is saying 

because we are not really asking for that much.        

 

In response to a question from Trustee Chair Hall, City Manager Engeland said that the estimated 

parcel tax calculations are $20.24 per parcel per month for a 30-year bond (full cost Modest Library 

Rebuild and $16.20 per parcel month for a 30-year bond (Modest Library Building with fundraising 

and lot sale).  He said that those are estimates with many variables that could change. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked why the Trustees chose the Modest Library Rebuild option, instead of the 

dream building.  Trustee Chair Hall said that the Modest Library Rebuild is still a new building at a 

cost of about $8.9M and is about 4,500 square feet less than the dream building.  Trustee Procter 

said that the dream building would require more staffing and that the Modest Library Rebuild can be 

designed to work within the current staffing.   

 



Page 4 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

City Manager Engeland said that the only option that Staff feels will not need additional Library staff 

is the minimal investment and selling the back lot.  He said that Staff built into the costs of any new 

building, at different levels, both costs of depreciation for life cycle of new assets and (when you talk 

about 75% - 125% square footage increase, even with design considerations) the anticipated need 

for additional Library staff.  City Manager Engeland that that Staff will be recommending that 

funding for adequate maintenance as well as adequate staffing be included in any proposed parcel 

tax. 

 

Trustee Procter disagreed and suggested that the design can be done to keep staff costs lower and 

that we need to tweak the assumptions.  Trustee Ziff said that the #1 Minimal Investment Option 

had a fault in that programs would have to be moved to different venues, which would require 

additional staff. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked about Trustee opposition to maintaining and expanding the current Library.  

Trustee Procter stated that it makes more sense in the long term to build a new Library that is 

robust, meets all State requirements, is energy efficient, is space efficient, and gives 60 years of 

use instead of just 10 – 20 years. 

 

Discussion among Council Members and Trustees occurred regarding why we need more capacity 

for the Library and comments included:  if we build it they will come, the community has 

demonstrated that they have a passion for and interest in the Library, the need for more space for 

historical archives, and the need for more space for teens in the Library.  It was highlighted that, to 

make the current Library earthquake safe and ADA compliant, the Library will  loose approximately 

1/3 of the collection and people want more not less.  Other comments included:  if we demonstrate 

what will happen to make the Library safe and ADA compliant, people will see what they will lose 

what they desperately love, the Library vision is compelling, and this is a good opportunity to lay the 

issues out and sell them to the community with specificity in a careful and respectful manner, and 

the Library vision as described was not included in the survey and people were not able to vote for 

that. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian requested an explanation regarding why revamping the current Library 

loses part of the collection and services,  Acting Library Services Manager Schofield stated that, per 

estimates obtained, replacing the current shelving with ADA compliant shelving and to make it look 

nice/not as cluttered would result in a 1/3 loss of its adult book collection and that, to accommodate 

the current collection, it would require 1,500 square feet more space.  Regarding the Library 

programing and space sharing, she reported that people have complained about the noise level 

when the youth are there, as they can no longer use the basement.  Acting Library Services 

Manager Schofield said that any program being conducted takes over the main Library and that 

people are always asking for a separate room to conduct programs, a meeting room, and quiet 

areas to study.  

 

Council Member Arizmendi asked a question regarding staffing and the four Library options.  City 

Manager Engeland said that, in general, the more complex the plan and the more complex the 

funding source the more staff time that is necessary, but that Staff time can be made available for 

any option that the Council chooses. 

 

Associate Librarian Smart called attention to the 2017 Library Facility Master Plan page 21 

(Additional Considerations) as showcasing the issues with the current interior space and has photos 

of the difficulties in programming.  Trustee Spears stated that the reason for the loss in book space 

is that the aisle space is currently 36” and the requirement is now 46”, so that several lines of 

bookcases are lost with ADA compliance. 



Page 5 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item. 

 

 Joan Maguire, Sierra Madre, said that (a) the current Library is an amazing space, but tiny, 

(b) the Library is absolutely crammed, (c) the children’s programs are noisy, (d) there is not 

enough space for adults to study, (e)  the basement items are old, (f) Sierra Madre can do 

better, (f) she supports a modest building to house all programs in quiet spaces, and (h) a 

modest rebuild is the way to go. 

 

 Charlie Fry, Sierra Madre, said that he is concerned about the funding. 

 

 Emmet Maguire, Sierra Madre, said that (a) he loves the Sierra Madre Library, (b) he thinks 

razing the current building is playing with fire, (c) he sees a committed small group that does 

not represent the will of the City, and (d) he supports a parcel tax, but thinks that he is in the 

minority.  

 

 Toni Buckner, Sierra Madre, said that (a) she agrees that the current Library building is not 

sufficient, is totally inadequate, is not safe, and is not serving the community (b) we have 

fought this battle for too long, (c) yes people do not want to pay taxes, (d) Sierra Madre 

deserves to invest in the Library, (e) the Library is not a building, it is a service (f) the Library 

is a commitment to the community, history, our children, seniors, future, and serves 

everyone, (g) it is time to make that commitment, (h) she appreciates that the Library Board 

of Trustees looked at the staffing levels as a reasonable target, and (i) the current building is 

not worth saving. 

 

 Gary Hood, Sierra Madre, said that (a) he had provided the City Council and Trustees each 

with a copy of a 27 page report/study that he authored that included 30 sources for funding 

a new Library, (b) suggested that robots could perform some staffing duties, (c) cited a 

March 2016 survey that showed that over 350 libraries in the US have closed and libraries 

are not the hub of the community, (d) he is excited about the Library and thinks that it can 

and should be hub of the community, (e) we can have the best library anywhere around at 

almost no cost, (f) there is no reason that we cannot have a Library that everyone wants to 

come to, (g) given the opportunity people will want to help pay for the costs, (h) committees 

can be formed to seek funding for the Library and we will not need a parcel tax, and (i) the 

Friends of the Library has approximately $1M in its coffers. 

 

 Bill Patzert, Sierra Madre, said that (a) he is proponent of a new Library, (b) the Library 

Survey was unfortunately worded so the responses were ambiguous in that everyone loves 

the Library but no one want to pay for it, (c) the motto in Sierra Madre is do not raise my 

taxes, (d) he does not like to pay federal taxes, but likes to pay local taxes, (e) really 

creative libraries (big and small) are being built all across the United States at a cost of 

approximately $1M per 1,000 square feet, (f) there have been no drawings (rough or 

otherwise) as to what new Library would look like, just a lot of talk and hand waving, (g) the 

elected City Council has the opportunity to leave a legacy in Sierra Madre by building 

something special for the kids, seniors, and the tweeners, and (h) the City Council can do 

something out of the ordinary and come up with a $12M parcel tax, not everyone would love 

you, but will remember you 60 years from now. 

 

 Margaret Quigley, President of the Friends of the Sierra Madre, said that the Friends of the 

Library (a) has approximately $600,000, (b) gives the Library annually $55,000 for its budget 

and for any requests for extra items, (c) all the money given to the Library is upon request, 



Page 6 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

as it is the job of the City and Trustees to determine those needs, and (d) would be happy to 

actively fundraise for more in the future, working with the City Council and Trustees.    

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  Seeing no 

one come forward, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the discussed to the funding 

options and a timeline.  

 
3. Funding Options and Tentative Timelines 

 
Mayor Delmar commented that she felt that the #1 Minimal Investment Option is not one favored by 
anybody.  No Council Member Trustee responded to that comment.  
 
Council Member Arizmendi asked, for the #1 Minimal Investment Option ($1.4M), where the funding 
would come from.  Mayor Delmar referenced the Staff Report and said that funding would come 
from the sale of the back lot and fundraising, with no bond or parcel tax. 
 
City Manager Engeland reported on the Library Facility Options that included a PowerPoint 
presentation, with the names of the options originating from different sources, tentative timelines, 
and the monthly per parcel cost of a 30-year bond/parcel tax, as follows: 
 

1. Minimal Investment: $1,400,000 (2017 Library Master Plan) 
 

 Addresses ADA compliance deficiencies, structural & seismic issues, necessary 
building repairs, and deferred maintenance items 

 No new funding required for adequate operations or maintenance 
 Potential funding:  sale of back lot & fundraising 
 Parcel Tax:  none  
 Timeline:  immediate 

 
2. Meaningful Improvement: $3,700,000  (2017 Library Master Plan) 

 
 With a 5,000 square foot addition 
 A 2-story off the back is not a viable option 
 Adding space to the front is a viable option 
 Parcel Tax:  $5.44 per month per parcel for 30 years 
 Timeline: 2020 or sooner depending on fundraising and/or bond/parcel tax 

 
3. Modest Library Rebuild: $8,900,000 (Library Board of Trustees) 

 
 Raze building and replace with a new 14,000 square foot structure 
 Addresses all needs identified in Library Master Plan 
 Adjacent lot may or may not be used in construction 
 Potential funding: fundraising, bond/parcel tax, & sale of the back lot may not be 

possible 
 Parcel Tax:  $20.24 per month per parcel for 30 years 
 Parcel Tax + Fundraising:  $16.20 per month per parcel for 30 years   
 Timeline:  2020 or later 

 
4. Fully Outfitted New Building: $11,130,000 (Joe Matthews Report) 

 
 Raze building and replace with a new 2-story 18,500 square foot structure 
 Addresses all needs identified in Library Master Plan 
 Adjacent lot will be used in construction and not available for sale 
 Potential funding: fundraising & bond/parcel tax 



Page 7 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

 Parcel Tax:  $26.06 per month per parcel for 30 years 
 Parcel Tax + Fundraising:  $22.58 per month per parcel for 30 years 
 Timeline:  2020 or later 

 
City Manager Engeland outlined that a parcel tax is a “flat rate” tax where the rate can vary based 
on the “type” of property, but not based on the value of the property. 

 All parcel taxes are “special taxes,” even if the money is placed in the General Fund. 

 All parcel taxes require a 2/3 vote to pass. 

 Special taxes may be raised at a Special Election or a General Election. 

 Procedure is to call the election and place the ballot measure on it (same procedure as for a 
General Tax). 

 
Mayor Delmar called on Trustee Chair Hall to speak about the “Library Foundation.”  Trustee Chair 
Hall reported that the Board of Trustees has begun to put together a five-member steering 
committee to begin the process of creating a Library Foundation as a 501(c)3 foundation, which 
includes application to the IRS, etc.  She briefly outlined the next steps as follows: 
 

(a) Need a project goal (needs to be decided) that they can “sell”. 
(b) Recruit foundation board members, usually individuals who can give a significant gift 

(project must be decided before recruitment). 
(c) Conduct public informational forums/meetings at various places and times (to include small 

venues/homes, requires architectural drawings, handouts, presentations, & time for 
questions). 

(d) Written case statement that includes an emotional and historical component. 
(e) Feasibility study (includes interviews with 40 – 60 from the general public) to determine how 

much money can be raised (how much money is needed & how much to ask the public for). 
(f) Campaign mode, which requires the hiring of a campaign manager and staff (the cost of 

which can be offset with fundraising) and includes setting up appointments, marketing, 
marketing materials, packets, brochures, etc. 

(g) Process takes approximately one year. 
(h) The Library Foundation would be separate and apart from the Friends of the Library.    
(i) The Library Foundation would be responsible for corporate gifts, major gifts, grants, planned 

giving, and endowment plans, all of which takes time. 
(j) To make all of this happen (regardless of the decision regarding the Library) there will have 

to be sustained leadership among City Staff, the City Council, and volunteers to convince 
the community to move forward. 

 
In response to a question from Mayor Delmar, Trustee Chair Hall said that the first task of the 
Library Foundation would be fundraising  Council Member Capoccia asked whether the Library 
Foundation would be able to commit to a certain fundraising amount/percentage to help determine 
a parcel tax amount.  Trustee Chair Hall stated that most of the money raised during a Foundation 
Campaign could be used to outfit the Library. 
 
Council Member Goss said that the City and Council need to take the lead, decide what we want, 
decide what we want to ask the tax payers to pay for, and then ask the Library Foundation what it 
can reasonably raise. 
 
Mayor Delmar clarified that the City Council needs to give Staff direction regarding which Library 
options need further research to be brought back to Council. 
 
Council Member Arizmendi asked about the ways a parcel tax gets on the ballot.  City Manager 
Engeland said that a parcel tax can be put forward on a special or general election.  He stated that, 
practically speaking, a date of 2020 was estimated as the time (if Council were to give direction 
tonight) it would take to do the work to begin getting firm costs, design, site plan, and architectural 



Page 8 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

drawings and come back to the City Council regarding the actual costs as compared to the current 
estimates. 
 
City Attorney Highsmith said that, regardless of who authors a parcel tax (whether it is a citizen’s 
initiative or the Council), it requires a 2/3 vote to pass.  She stated that, if the Council does it, then 
the Council has the opportunity to look at the project, how much money is needed,  can create an 
ordinance or description of the parcel tax and the purposes of it.  City Attorney Highsmith suggested 
that any Library parcel tax be called a Library Special Tax, as it still requires a 2/3 vote.  In addition, 
she said that other cities that have done this have been most successful when the city creates the 
ordinance for a Library Special Tax.  City Attorney Highsmith reported that a citizen’s initiative 
would require the signatures of 5% of the number of registered voters in the last gubernatorial 
election who actually voted for a governor. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Delmar, City Attorney Highsmith said that a library parcel tax 
would be likely be separate tax from a potential Storm water MS4 Permit parcel tax and that any tax 
requires a 2/3 vote.  She said that California legislative analyst studies say that people are more 
likely to vote for and support a special tax because they know what the money is being used for. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian as to whether the City would propose 
floating a bond up front and the parcel tax pays back that bond over 30 years, City Attorney 
Highsmith said that is one way of doing it, as the money raised is for debt service on a bond. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian said that a question is, if we decide today that the Modest Library 
Rebuild is what we want, whether the Library Foundation and/or the Friends of the Library efforts 
are better spent in helping the City to run a campaign to help pass a parcel tax for the full amount of 
the costs.  He suggested that Sierra Madre model what other neighboring cities have done recently 
to get a parcel tax passed.   
 
Trustee Chair Hall said that the Foundation can raise funds in perpetuity because there will be 
ongoing expenses and that is basically what a foundation does.  Mayor Delmar said that there is no 
reason that the Trustees could not do a Foundation, but that Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian’s point is 
that the Foundation would not be fundraising for the Library rebuilding costs and that a parcel tax 
would cover all such costs.  Council Members Capoccia and Goss agreed that Library Foundation 
fundraising as a way to sell a parcel tax as a package would influence voters to approve it. 
 
There was consensus among the Council members that the Modest Library Rebuild is the preferred 
option, with Council Member Capoccia indicating that he would like to fit it in and sell the lot to 
reduce the burden on the tax payers.  Trustee Ziff stated that, while selling the back lot may bring 
funds, we would loose southern access to the Library which many people use to enter/exit the 
Library property, the parking lot may not have sufficient space for cars to turn around, and the 
Library may need more parking, not less.   
 
Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item. 

 

 Robert Stockly, Sierra Madre, said that (a) we have to do something and thinks that they are 

on the right track to the correct option, (b) he is suggesting, as a viable option, the creation 

of a Library District for construction costs and ongoing support, (c) the Library is an 

emotional draw for the community, lends itself to the vision of the Library Trustees, and that 

is what sells, and (d) maybe now is the time.  

 

 Dee Alcorn, Sierra Madre, said that (a) the Library has been underfunded for years, (b) he 

would like to see action regarding the Library now, (c) he thinks that the Library Foundation 

is necessary to show that we have community support and long-term commitment, (d) the 



Page 9 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

funding needs to be resolved, and (e) he thinks that the community will support a parcel tax, 

but there is a need to do the necessary work of community outreach/education.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  Seeing no 

one come forward, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the item to the task of 

providing direction to Staff, unless Council wanted further discussion. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi stated that she looks at the City budget as a whole and the City’s major 

priorities, loves the Library Trustees Vision, wants to be there and see how we can do it, but not in 

the form of a parcel tax.  She said that she is concerned about the other City priorities, water mains, 

MS 4 Permit anticipated costs, and police/fire/core services costs.  Council Member Arizmendi said 

that she thinks that a Library parcel tax can be sold as part of an emotional plea, but personally 

does not think that the City should spend its resources and time in terms of staff on this.  In 

response to a question from Council Member Capoccia, Council Member Arizmendi said that she is 

supporting the #1 Minimal Investment Option. 

 

Council Member Goss said that he is supporting the Modest Library Rebuild Option (recommended 

that the name be changed), thinks that, when you let people know what they will get in the new 

Library and what it will be cost, people will think that it is a bargain, and that a Library parcel tax can 

be sold.  He stated that this is a rare opportunity to provide the community with a vision thinking 

about ourselves and what we really value, a Library is a civilized place, people are doing noble 

things, and it is worth it.  Trustee Procter stated that the phrase he had used was “a courageous 

conversation, meaning thinking long term, and what do we want for our kids and grandkids”.  

Council Member Goss said that he is supporting a Library parcel tax and hopes a majority of his 

colleagues will support it. 

 

Mayor Delmar reminded everyone that the Council is not deciding tonight regarding a parcel tax, 

but just providing direction to Staff to bring information back to the Council. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian said that people will vote with their feet and pen at the ballot box, any 

material change in the Library would have to be done through a parcel tax and is convinced that we 

can get it done.  He stated that his view is that the City needs to raze and rebuild the Library, as the 

most cost-efficient option.  He acknowledged, however, there may be other voters who say that, 

priority wise, this is not on the top of their list and are OK the minimal investment option.  Mayor Pro 

Tem Harabedian said that he is supporting the Modest Library Rebuild Option and moving forward 

is determining whether we can sell that.  Regarding the Library Foundation and its role, he said that, 

should the City Council decide to move forward on a parcel tax (however many vote for it), his 

personal view is that the Council be prepared to ask the voters for the total cost and not expect the 

Library Foundation to be responsible for some of those costs.  Council Member Harabedian stated 

that the Library Foundation has an important role, beyond fundraising millions of dollars for 

something like this. 

 

Council Member Capoccia said that he is in favor of a Modest Library Rebuild Option and the point 

is what is the best way to get it done, and what is the fall back option, even if it means selling the 

back lot. 

 

Mayor Delmar said that the Council needs information on what it will look if we sell the back lot and 

repurpose the current Library space, is not as optimistic that a parcel tax will pass, and the Council 

has to be responsible and to look at other options.  She stated that everyone agrees that we want to 

be able to support and fix the Library, make it safe, and, given we do not have the finances to do 

that, it is dependent upon the voters.  Mayor Delmar asserted her grave concern with putting a 



Page 10 of 10 
Sierra Madre City Council Special Joint Meeting 

with Library Board of Trustees Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

parcel tax on the ballot for the Library when we have $24M costs coming down the pike for storm 

water.  Mayor Delmar stated that she would like to see the Modest Library Rebuild Option but is not 

optimistic that it will pass. 

 

Mayor Delmar said that (and Council ultimately agreed) that the options to be brought back with 

more information and considerations for Council review and to decide are (1) #3 Modest Library 

Rebuild and (2) #1 Minimal Investment Option as a backup/fallback plan, as the Council still has the 

responsibility to do something, even if a parcel tax does not pass.  She said that the Council cannot 

make a solid decision based on the current information and there is a need for more firm costs, 

timeline, need for drawings, transition planning costs, other issues to be addressed, etc.  Mayor 

Delmar repeated that a decision regarding the Modest Library Rebuild Option has not been made 

because the Council does not yet have sufficient information.  

 

In response to a question from Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian, City Attorney Highsmith clarified that it 

would take a vote of four of the five Council Members to put a parcel tax on the ballot. 

 

Mayor Delmar concluded by confirming that Staff has sufficient direction to move forward, thanked 

the Library Board of Trustees for their work in putting this together, and asserted her hope that we 

can do a Modest Library Rebuild and get the people out there to vote for it. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The motion to adjourn was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss. 

 Noes:      None 

 Absent:   None 

 Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adjourn was passed unanimously. 

 

THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND 

LIBJRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING WAS ADJOURNED at 9:31 p.m. to a Regular Meeting 

to be held on Tuesday, July 24, 2018, in the Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers. 

 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

   Denise Delmar, Mayor 

 

Minutes taken and prepared by: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Sue Spears, City Clerk   

 



Page 1 of 6 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

Tuesday, July 10, 2018 - 6:30 pm 
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 

  

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

Mayor Denise Delmar called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  City Clerk Sue Spears called the roll. 

 

Present: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

 

Absent: None  

 

Also Present: Gabe Engeland, City Manager 

Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 

Marcie Medina, Assistant City Manager 

Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk 

James Carlson, Management Analyst 

Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works  

Vincent Gonzalez, Planning & Community Preservation Director 

Joe Ortiz, Police Chief 

Jill Schofield, Acting Library Services Manager 

Christine Smart, Associate Librarian 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian led the Pledge of Allegiance and followed by thanking the “phenomenal” 
volunteers and City staff who worked on the successful 4th of July Parade.  He also reflected on the 
safe survival and rescue of the 12 boys and their Soccer Coach in Thailand as an international effort 
that resulted in a “real day miracle.“ 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS PRESENTED 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Council Member Arizmendi moved to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian seconded the motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 



Page 2 of 6 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss  

Noes:      None 

Absent: None 

Abstain: None 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for the approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of June 26, 2018. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian moved to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of June 26, 

2018 as presented. 

  

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of 

June 26, 2018 as presented. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Member Rachelle 

Arizmendi 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   Council Members John Capoccia and Gene Goss 

 

The motion to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting June 26, 2018 as presented was 

passed with three yes votes and two abstain. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

A. Mayor Denise Delmar reported that tomorrow is the filming of the City of Sierra Madre promotional 
video and that she is honored to be providing part of the voice over for the video.  

 
B. Pro Tem John Harabedian did not make a report. 

 
C. Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi thanked all of the City staff and volunteers who participated in 

conducting events on both July 3 and 4 and reported that she previously met with the City’s new 
San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District representative and talked about issues facing the City. 

 
D. Council Member John Capoccia reported that he had a very fruitful meeting with Planning 

Commissioner John Hutt and Planning Commission Chairperson Bob Spears that also included 
City staff.  He recommended that other City Council members attend these quarterly meetings with 
selected Planning Commissioners in the future. 

 
E. Council Member Gene Goss also thanked the volunteers and City Staff who contributed to the 4th 

of July Parade and reported that City’s Water Subcommittee, which included City staff, had a 
positive meeting today with Mr. Price, the City’s new San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
representative.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  
 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on items not on the agenda. 

 



Page 3 of 6 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

 Darlene Papas, Lifeline for Pets, said that (1) Lifeline for Pets is an animal rescue organization, 

(2) they are looking for a few good homes to foster shy cats, (3) thanked Mayor Delmar and her 

husband for recently fostering a cat, and (4) for more information to sign up as a foster family or 

to adopt a cat or dog, the website is Lifelineforpets.org 

 

 Hector Rodriguez, Field Representative representing Chris Holden, Assemblymember 41st 

District, introduced himself as the new Field Representative to Sierra Madre from the Office of 

Chris Holden, Assemblymember 41st District, and said that he is looking forward to working with 

the City staff and City Council.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward on items not on the agenda.  Seeing no 

one come forward, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment. 

 

PRESENTATION – RECOGNITION OF JILL SCHOFIELD, RETIRING CITY EMPLOYEE 

 

City Manager Engeland introduced Jill Schofield and complemented her service as Acting Library 

Services Manager during a time of recent turmoil this past year.  Mayor Delmar presented a Sierra 

Madre Certificate of Recognition to Ms. Schofield on her retirement from the City of Sierra.   Ms. 

Schofield said that she is honored to have worked for the City of Sierra Madre and expressed her 

appreciation to the Sierra Madre City Council for this recognition.  Attending the presentation with Ms. 

Schofield were her husband, Tim Schofield, and her youngest son, Peter Schofield. 

 

1. AGENDA ACTION ITEM:  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

City Manager Engeland gave the following reports under the Consent Calendar: 

 

a) SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 1399 REAUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PUBLIC, 
EDUCATIONAL, AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS SUPPORT FEE - Recommendation that 
the City Council read Ordinance No. 1399 by title only, for second reading, waive further 
reading, and adopt Ordinance 1399, an ordinance of the City Council amending Ordinance 
1398 and reauthorizing the City’s , an ordinance amending and reauthorizing the City’s 
Public, Educational, and Governmental (PEG) Access Support Fee. 

 
b) CANCELLATION OF BOTH REGULAR AUGUST 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS – 

Recommendation that the City Council approve the cancellation of both the August 7 and 
August 21, 2018 City Council meetings and direct staff to pay all necessary expenses during 
that time. 

 

c) CONSIDERATION OF AMENDINGMENT TO THE RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO COVER ADDITIONAL COSTS RELATED 
TO THE WATER AND WASTEWATER RATE STUDY - Recommendation that the City 
Council approve a payment of $22,471 for additional consultant costs associated with the 
preparation of the City’s Water and Wastewater Cost of Services Analysis and appropriate 
said amount from the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Water Enterprise Fund. 

 

d) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 18-34: AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 2017 INSTALLMENT PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS 
AND THE TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 
– Recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution 18-34 authorizing the 
execution and delivery of a First Amendment to the 2017 Installment Purchase Agreement 
and authorizing the execution and delivery of documents and the taking of all other actions 
required in connection therewith. 



Page 4 of 6 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

 

e) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 18-38 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA 
MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS - Recommendation that the City Council 
approve Resolution 18-38 for approval of payment of City warrants in aggregate amount of 
$120,398.52; Library warrants in the aggregate amount of $6,694.44, and a payroll transfer 
in the aggregate amount of $394,737.68  for fiscal years ending June 2018 and June 2019. 

  
Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on items on the Consent 

Calendar. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian noted a typographical error only in the lease agreement related to 

Consent Item 1d, which did not change Resolution 18-34. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on the Consent Calendar.  Seeing no one, 

Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.  

 

Concerning Consent Item 1c, Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian said (1) that paying RAFTELIS for tasks 

completed outside the original Scope of Work was the right thing to do, (2) that per the contract,  

RAFTELIS should have obtained prior written City approval prior to performing such work, and (3) 

that this is a lesson learned for the future. 

 

Mayor Delmar concurred with Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian’s comments. 

 

Council Member Capoccia made a motion to approve Consent Items 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, and 1e as 

presented. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve Consent Calendar Items 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, and 1e as presented was approved 

unanimously. 

 

2. AGENDA DISCUSSION ITEM – SAFE, CLEAN WATER PROGRAM – LOS ANGELES COUNTY 

PROPOSED SPECIAL PARCEL TAX 

 

Management Analyst Carlson gave a report on this item and provided a summary and analysis of 

the Program’s components.  Staff has been informed this is the final draft of the Program and that 

there will not be any substantial changes before the County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors 

takes the item into consideration on July 17, 2018.  Staff is seeking direction from the City Council.  

Management Analyst Carlson turned the discussion of this item over to Council Member Capoccia. 

 

Council Member Capoccia said that he is asking for the creation of a City Council letter or resolution 

to the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors opposing the proposed parcel tax for the following 

reasons:  (a) any monies paid from this tax will not benefit Sierra Madre, as 95% of San Gabriel 

Valley water is already percolated, either at the Santa Fe Spreading Grounds or as far south as the 

Whittier Narrows, (b) the two basic justifications for the proposed tax are flawed, (c) funding for MS4 



Page 5 of 6 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

compliance via a county-wide parcel tax is premature because of the inappropriateness of the MS4 

permit itself, (d) the current interpretation of the original intent of the Clean Water Act is a 

perversion, as it was meant to prevent industrial discharges into “Navigable Water of the US” 

(example: Cuyahoga River fire in the past), (e) a “permit” suggests that the permittee can stop the 

activity that is under the jurisdiction of the permit and a municipality does not have the option of 

stopping storm water discharges, (f) EPA guidelines only require that, to achieve compliance, a 

municipality must follow an approved Storm Water Management Plan and must apply “best 

practices” via an interactive process only if an exceedance is detected, (g) aside from water 

capture, the Regional Board has created requirements that are in excess of the Clean Water Act, 

(h) litigation is pending, (i) the compliance costs are remarkably excessive, and (j) our Enhanced 

Watershed Management Plan (EWMP) group (with Arcadia, Duarte, and other cities) has revised it 

to reduce costs dramatically, but logically, we should be able to take no action and just use storm 

water conveyance channels at Santa Fe and Whittier Narrows spreading grounds.  Council Member 

Capoccia emphasized that this proposed parcel tax is incredibly and phenomenally ridiculous. 

 

Council Member Goss acknowledged that there is a lot of insanity with this MS4 Permit, but that the 

City is committed to a very high cost in the future, at least theoretically in the $20M - $30M range.  

He asked why this proposed parcel tax would not help the City fund that expense if we have no 

other options.  Council Member Capoccia said that it would help fund it but referred the issue to 

Management Analyst Carlson for response.  Management Analyst Carlson reminded the Council 

that Sierra Madre is included as a party of interest in the pending litigation, referenced the Staff 

Report regarding a possible alternative to a very complex and overly layered LA County effort, and 

said that the Culver City-model local fee would be more efficient and retain more local control of our 

residents’ tax dollars.  In addition, he said that, despite Council Member Capoccia’s correct 

arguments, it is still the standing regulation and unless the Council wants to voluntarily get out of 

compliance or determine at some point that the City can no longer afford compliance, Staff is 

recommending that we keep going on this path, keep an eye on the litigation, and keep an eye on 

this legislation, but do so from a perch of compliance.   

    

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to Council Member Arizmendi’s question regarding the MS4 Permit and pending 

litigations, Management Analyst Carlson that, after the 2012 MS4 Permit came out, some people 

said that it was too strict while some entities said that it was too lax, and that those issues are being 

worked out now in the courts.  In addition, he said, where judgements are being made, people are 

looking at how those judgements may affect what is happening in LA County because work on the 

next generation MS4 Permit has already begun. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian said that the Staff Report and Council Member Capoccia’s comments 

were very enlightening.  He asked, if the City is stuck with the MS4 Permit, what should the City do.  

Council Member Capoccia responded that the Culver City-model is better and would ensure that 

the tax payers are getting the most from their dollars and be locally controlled. 

 

In response to a question from Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian, Management Analyst Carlson said that, 

if the proposed parcel tax were to pass, the City would get about 40 cents for every $1 paid in 

taxes. 

 

Mayor Delmar clarified that the City Council is not discussing the MS 4 Permit (as the City is 

obligated to do that now) and that Staff and Council Member Capoccia are asking that the City 

Council send a letter to the LA Board of Supervisors opposing this proposed parcel tax.  In 

response to a question from Mayor Delmar, Management Analyst Carlson said that, if the LA Board 



Page 6 of 6 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-10-2018 

 

of Supervisors moves forward with the parcel tax proposal and it passes by a 2/3 vote, the City 

cannot opt out of the resulting parcel tax. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item. 

 

 Steve Stafford, Temple City, said that the City needs to make sure that, when there is an 

accident, the tow company cleans up all debris/residual gasoline from the street and does 

not wash it into the storm drain. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to speak on this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor Delmar 

closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

Discussion among the Council Members took place expressing that Council Members Capoccia’s 

points were compelling, the tax is not well thought out, this proposed parcel tax is premature, that 

this proposed parcel tax is not the correct way to fund the stated issue to be addressed, and that 

the proposed parcel tax appears to be complicated and unfinished. 

 

Mayor Delmar provided Staff with direction to immediately send a letter signed by all five Council 

members names opposing the proposed parcel tax to the LA Board of Supervisors, with an 

opposition resolution to be adopted at the next City Council meeting on July 24, 2018.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The motion to adjourn was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss. 

 Noes:      None 

 Absent:   None 

 Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adjourn was passed unanimously. 

 

THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING WAS ADJOURNED at 7:13 p.m. to a 

Regular Meeting to be held on Tuesday, July 24, 2018, in the Sierra Madre City Hall Council 

Chambers. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

   Denise Delmar, Mayor 

 

Minutes taken and prepared by: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Sue Spears, City Clerk   

 


















































































































































































































































	City Council Meeting Agenda - July 24, 2018
	Council Minutes -7-10-2018 - Special
	Council Minutes - 7-10-2018
	1A - NOTICE OF COMPLETION, FY 17-18 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
	1B - FY 2018-2019 BLANKET PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $45,000
	1C - GRANULAR ACTIVATED CARBON GAC REPLACEMENT
	1D - RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS
	1E - RESOLUTION NUMBER 18-39
	2 - DOWNTOWN PEDESTRIAN SAFETY
	3 - DISCUSSION REGARDING TITLE 17, ZONING, CHAPTER 17.22.130 - RECORDATION REQUIREMENT FOR SECOND UNIT PERMIT
	4 - PENSION RATE STABILIZATION PLAN

